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1.
Introduction

Upon conclusion of the First Multilateral Evaluation Round of the Mechanism to Follow up on Implementation of the Inter-American Convention on the Prevention, Punishment, and Eradication of Violence against Women (MESECVI or the Mechanism), the Secretariat of the Inter-American Commission of Women proposed that an evaluation be done of how the Mechanism and its activities function and what impact they have had.

With that end in mind, the CIM commissioned the consulting services of the Equipo Latinoamericano de Justicia y Género (ELA)
/ [Latin American Team for Justice and Gender] to provide the analytical criteria by which to ascertain what contributions the MESECVI and its activities have made, the degree of their impact within the countries of the region and their performance, all from the perspective of the national authorities, experts and members of civil society.  The evaluation of the MESECVI serves a threefold purpose: first, to identify those strategies and activities of the MESECVI that have had good results; second, to identify those that can be corrected or adjusted, by examining the progress that the Mechanism’s activities have made and the obstacles encountered; third, to make forward-looking recommendations, taking into account the changes suggested by the lessons learned and the changes in the environment and context. 

The MESECVI was devised to monitor the commitments undertaken by the states parties to the Convention, to help achieve the purposes set forth therein and to facilitate technical cooperation among the states parties and with other OAS member states and permanent observers.
/ The Mechanism is based on the principles of the sovereignty, non-intervention and legal equality of states and respects the principles of impartiality and objectivity in its operation so as to ensure that the Mechanism is applied fairly and that the states parties are treated equally. 

In July 2007 the MESECVI concluded its First Multilateral Evaluation Round -launched in July 2005- and presented the Hemispheric Report containing the conclusions and regional trends with respect to compliance with and implementation of the Inter-American Convention on the Prevention, Punishment, and Eradication of Violence against Women (the Convention of Belém do Pará).  As of this writing, the MESECVI has now embarked upon the Second Multilateral Evaluation Round.

The Mechanism has been in operation for over five years and has completed its first evaluation round.  Violence against women is the specific area of competence of the Mechanism, which is unique in its type.  Even so, the Mechanism is not widely known within the region.  With the exception of one study done in 2005, not long after the Mechanism’s creation, no studies or research on the subject of the MESECVI, its activities or its impact on violence against women appear to have been conducted.
/
This report is divided into four parts.  This general introduction is followed by a description of the research method and scope of the study done by ELA.  The third section presents the principal findings of the field work, which includes the opinions of the persons interviewed under the research project as to how the potential that the MESECVI’s work offers can be used to better advantage.  The fourth and last section contains the conclusions that ELA reached based on the material compiled during the research and its analysis of pertinent documents and other experiences in the region.

ELA is grateful for the invaluable contribution made by all those who shared their opinions and experiences in the course of this research.  This work is the result of an exercise in joint reflection that began with the initiative of the CIM Secretariat and that must surely continue and delve deeper in order to be able to plan the reforms that the MESECVI needs if its activities are to have a more powerful impact.

2.
ELA’s research method and the scope of its undertaking

ELA worked on this research from December 2009 to March 2010.  The research began with a review of the most relevant documents of the MESECVI in order to determine which aspects of the Mechanism’s performance and impact the field work would address.  The documents ELA examined included the text of the Convention of Belém do Pará, the Statute of the MESECVI, the rules in force for Mechanism-related bodies, the questionnaires sent to the States as part of the evaluations conducted under the First Multilateral Evaluation Round, the states’ reports, the Hemispheric Report, and the working papers prepared by the CIM Secretariat and made available to the ELA.

After identifying certain critical issues, ELA prepared a guide questionnaire to be put to the following groups of persons:  (i) competent national authorities (ANC); (ii) members of the Committee of Experts (CEVI); (iii) officials of international organizations active in the area of violence, and (iv) experts from civil society in the countries of the region.  The guide questionnaire distributed among the persons interviewed is attached as Annex 1.
/
The questions pursued three main lines of inquiry.  The first line of inquiry was about the functioning of the MESECVI.  The questions were intended to ascertain the degree of the actors’ participation (ANC and CEVI) and the relevance of the procedures for designating the ANC and CEVI.  Second, questions were asked about the challenges as regards the functioning and efficacy of the MESECVI and its strengths and weaknesses.  Finally, still other questions asked whether the legal instruments in force allowed the Mechanism to function properly.  

Secondly, the questions explored the impact that the MESECVI has had in each of the countries involved at the domestic level.  Questions were asked about the dissemination of the MESECVI’s activities and recommendations and their impact on legislative initiatives and public policies, and the impression that the Mechanism’s actions have made on regional and global organizations.  

Lastly, the questions were calculated to elicit the respondents’ opinion about the degree to which civil society participates in MESECVI’s operation and impact and the access to MESECVI-related information.
Then, to add a contextual dimension to the respondents’ opinions regarding the MESECVI’s impact and civil society’s participation, ELA did an internet search for additional information that could be used to compare the findings of this research project with the experience of other organizations and their links to civil society.  First, the internet search looked for information about the degree of civil society organizations’ participation in institutions like the Committee on the Elimination of Discrimination against Women (the CEDAW Committee), the public hearings of the Inter-American Commission on Human Rights (IACHR) and the MESECVI. Annex 2 is a table listing the nongovernmental organizations that have worked with various global and regional bodies and forums.

The research also checked official national sources (the websites of the mechanisms that champion women’s causes in a cross-section of countries) in order to determine whether information about the MESECVI, its operation and recommendations, was available and in circulation.  Annex 3 lists the sources checked. 

The questionnaires designed by ELA were sent by e-mail to the addresses supplied by the CIM Secretariat, taken from its records.
/  The persons contacted answered the questionnaire in writing and sent it to ELA. In some cases, a telephone conversation or personal interview was arranged and the comments and observations made by the persons being interviewed were documented.

As per the agreement reached with the CIM Secretariat,
/ the following persons were contacted in January 2010 for a first round of interviews:

Table 1.
List of persons that ELA contacted in January 2010 and to whom the ELA questionnaire was sent.

	Competent National Authority
	Committee of Experts



	Magdalena Faillace

Argentina
	Sheila Roseau

Antigua and Barbuda


	Phedra Raming

Bahamas
	Susana Chiarotti

Argentina


	John Hollingsworth

Barbados
	Leila Linhares Barsted

Brazil


	Aparecida Gonçalves

Brazil
	Sylvia Mesa Peluffo

Costa Rica


	Mariella Peña Pinto

El Salvador
	Gayne Villagómez

Ecuador


	Doris García Paredes

Honduras
	Hilda Morales Trujillo

Guatemala


	Faith Webster

Jamaica
	Barbara Bailey

Jamaica


	Instituto Nacional de Mujeres

Mexico
	Lilian Curbelo Podestá

Uruguay


	Directora General de la Mujer

Peru
	Asia Villegas

Venezuela





Source:  Prepared by ELA 

Also during January 2010, ELA contacted 12 more individuals, some with international organizations and others who were national experts on civil society, to get other views and input.
   The questionnaire was sent to all these persons.  Some chose to answer in writing, while meetings or telephone conversations were arranged with others to get their opinions.

Table 2 shows the number of questionnaires sent out and the number of responses that ELA had received as of February 25, 2010.  Out of a total of 30 questionnaires sent by e-mail to the addresses supplied by CIM, only 12 responses were received.  The questionnaire elicited responses from 4 of the 8 CAN contacted and 4 of the 10 CEVI experts contacted.  Responses were also received from 2 key informants and 2 persons who have had long associations with international organizations. 

Table 2.
Itemization of the responses that ELA received to the contacts made in January 2010
	CATEGORY
	No. of questionnaires sent/interviews requested
	Countries contacted
	Replies received
	Countries that responded

	National Competent

Authority
	8
	Argentina
Barbados

Brazil
Ecuador

El Salvador
Honduras

Mexico
Peru
	4
	Argentina
/
Mexico

Ecuador

Brazil


	CEVI experts
	10
	Antigua
Argentina

Brazil
Costa Rica

Ecuador
Guatemala

Jamaica
Mexico

Uruguay
Venezuela

	4
	Argentina

Ecuador

Guatemala 

Mexico

	Key informants 
	9
	Argentina (x 3)

Chile
Jamaica

Paraguay
Peru (x 3)

	2
	Argentina 

(x 2)

	International organizations 
	3
	IDB

ECLAC

UNIFEM

	2
	ECLAC

UNIFEM

	TOTAL


	30
	 
	12
	 


Source:
Prepared by ELA based on the information requested and received from the CAN, the members of the CEVI, key informants and officials of international organizations.

Using the views surveyed as of that date and the review of the secondary documentary sources, ELA prepared a preliminary report and presented it at the Meeting of the CIM Executive Committee held in Washington on February 25, 2010.  Annex 4 of this document is the presentation made at the meeting of the Executive Committee, outlining the views that the persons interviewed had expressed with regard to the functioning, dissemination and impact of the MESECVI in the countries of the region.

Following the presentation given before the Executive Committee of the CIM, a number of representatives of the Competent National Authorities expressed their interest in receiving and answering the survey used in the research project.  Therefore, by agreement with the CIM Secretariat, in March ELA sent out another group of questionnaires to a total of 38 individuals:  20 questionnaires to the ANCs and 18 to CEVI experts.  They were given one week in which to respond.  The following is a breakdown of the questionnaires that ELA sent out in this second phase and the responses received.  The responses were received between April and May 2010.

Table 3.
Itemization of the responses that ELA received to the questionnaires it sent out in March 2010.

	CATEGORY
	No. of questionnaires sent 
	Countries
Contacted
	Replies

received
	Countries that responded

	Competent National Authority
	20
	Antigua and Barbuda 

Belize

Bolivia

Chile

Colombia

Costa Rica

Dominica

Dominican Republic

Guatemala

Guyana

Haiti

Jamaica

Nicaragua

Panama

Paraguay

St. Lucia

Suriname

Trinidad and Tobago

Uruguay

Venezuela

	2
	Barbados

Paraguay

	CEVI experts
	18
	Bahamas

Barbados

Belize

Bolivia

Chile

Colombia

Dominica

Dominican Republic

El Salvador

Guyana

Haiti

Honduras

Nicaragua

Paraguay

Peru

St. Vincent and Grenadines

Suriname

Trinidad and Tobago

	1
	Colombia


Source:
Table prepared by ELA on the basis of the questionnaires sent out in the week of March 5 to 12, 2010.

The following section presents the principal findings regarding the performance and impact of the MESECVI from the standpoint of the key actors consulted throughout the fieldwork.  Because of the method used and the low response rate from both the Competent National Authorities and members of the CEVI, this study does not include a quantitative analysis of the responses received. 

3.
Principal findings regarding the MESECVI’s performance and impact, in the opinion of key actors. 

Based on the opinions and comments expressed in the questionnaire, the principal findings were classified under three central issues: the operation of the MESECVI, the impact of the actions and recommendations adopted by the Mechanism, and the degree of civil society’s participation. These three issue areas are discussed below. 
3.1.
Operation of the MESECVI

In the opinion of those who answered the questionnaire, effective and ongoing participation by the Mechanism’s National Competent Authorities and members of its Committee of Experts is at risk due to the budgetary constraints that many countries of the region are facing and that make it difficult to ensure their attendance at working meetings. 

Opinions varied as to how to overcome this obstacle:  one proposal was that the States should guarantee the funding to enable the experts to attend; another was that the OAS budget should included an appropriation for that purpose; still another was that third parties should provide the necessary financing by way of specific funds that could be set up with agencies like the IDB.  One of those interviewed raised a specific question having to do with this difficulty, which was whether the meetings had to be held in Washington, D.C., which is significantly more expensive than other cities in the countries that actively participate in the Mechanism.
/
All those who answered the questionnaire said that in order to support the Mechanism and follow through with the recommendations made, greater political commitment on the part of the states was essential. The ANC have to be more involved, but that means heightening the profile and the presence of the representatives to the MESECVI since the ANC may change so frequently that it becomes difficult to establish an adequate line of communication between the CIM Secretariat and the ANC.  At the same time, these frequent changes make it difficult to achieve the desired continuity in the work carried out.  The problems that arise in some countries in designating the ANC are troubling.  When making these appointments, the countries should be careful to look for the necessary competence and expertise in all cases so as to ensure that the work accomplished meets the necessary standards of quality.
/
Those who answered the questionnaire underscored the competence of many of the CEVI experts and the quality of their contributions, despite the difficulties they encounter in endeavoring to do their jobs, as described below.  In some cases, concern was expressed about the mechanism for appointing the CEVI experts, since in general no provision has been made for a transparent mechanism of selection and appointment that enables civil society to participate or be consulted in the appointment.  A more transparent and public procedure for designating the members of the CEVI would serve to ensure that members of the CEVI meet certain minimum qualifications.  It would also guarantee enforcement of a system of disqualifying factors whose purpose is to ensure the quality of CEVI’s work product and its independence.

Another concern of those who answered the questionnaire has been the length of the term of the CEVI experts.  It was said that the advisable course of action would be for experts to remain in their posts for the duration of an evaluation round; it would be better still if they remained for two rounds, so that the lessons learned in the earlier work could be used to best advantage and thereby lend the necessary continuity to the work being carried out.    It was also observed that having the same experts evaluate the same countries from one round to the next would make it easier to monitor and evaluate implementation of the recommendations made to the country in question.

The responses to the questionnaire clearly single out two factors that are predicates for substantive contributions from the members of the CEVI: on the one hand, sufficient economic resources to hold a meeting with all the parties involved, thereby obviating the problem of experts who are unable to attend for lack of funds; on the other hand, the duration of the meeting must be long enough to allow substantive discussion of the topics under analysis.
During the course of the research, it was observed that the Mechanism basically relies on the disposition, resources and talents of the experts.  While this creates possibilities (because of the professional caliber of many of the experts), it can also pose limitations (because of the limited resources they have and the practical difficulties pointed out earlier).
One of the difficulties mentioned is that the experts are not always evaluating a country about which they are fully versed, with the result that the ANC have occasionally taken issue with observations made by the MESECVI which, in the opinion of the national authority, do not accurately reflect the reality of the country.  Another objection raised in connection with the evaluations received from the CEVI has to do with the protracted duration of the evaluation rounds.  The rounds are so long that the recommendations made are sometimes already outdated by the time they are issued, as circumstances and the national scenarios evolve.  This may mean that such changes are not captured until the next round of evaluations.

The persons who answered the questionnaire highlighted the efforts that the members of the Mechanism had made in the activities undertaken thus far.  Although some were of the view that it is too soon to evaluate its impact, they identified the following as the challenges that the MESECVI faces if it is to function properly and effectively: 

(a) It needs a larger budget to strengthen the CIM Secretariat, whose efforts are appreciated.

(b) The efforts of the ANC and those of the members of CEVI must be better coordinated.

(c) Communication among the MESECVI actors, which is currently done by e-mail, needs to be improved.
/
(d) The information that the MESECVI and the States have must be made more readily available, through an updated web page, for example. 

One of the strengths frequently mentioned is the very existence of the MESECVI as a special mechanism for monitoring violence against women in the region, one that has acquired significant experience in its years of operation.  However, the respondents concurred that in order to surmount the present situation and significantly enhance the MESECVI’s impact and efficacy, it needs a larger budget and greater political support.  Unless the resources earmarked for the MESECVI are substantially increased, it will be very difficult for its organs to function properly and any possibility of increased support from the CIM Secretariat would have to be discounted.  The Mechanism is also perceived as being politically weak:  its operating difficulties undermine the seriousness with which the states regard MESECVI’s recommendations and reports. This, in turn, makes implementation and monitoring of the Mechanism’s recommendations even more problematic.

On the whole, the legal instruments are not viewed as an obstacle to the MESECVI’s proper functioning.  However, mention was made of the fact that the rules should establish a procedure by which the members of CEVI are designated, which should be a participatory and transparent system that sets forth disqualifying factors, the minimum qualifications that the designated experts must meet, and the prescribed duration of their terms. 

Another matter that respondents mentioned if legal instruments are amended, is the advisability of abbreviating the time between the national responses to the questionnaires, the experts’ evaluation and issuance of the recommendations.  The idea is to make certain that the recommendations to the states are not already outdated by the time they are issued.

Some of these points will be discussed at greater length later in this report.

3.2.
The MESECVI’s impact

In general, the persons who answered the questionnaire were circumspect in their assessment of the MESECVI’s impact.  While they emphasized the advances made in the region, the Mechanism’s role was described as one of monitoring the changes that took place, for example, in the general context of Latin America and the legislative reforms that MESECVI and many others helped bring about.

The consensus among the respondents was that relatively little is known at the domestic level about the MESECVI’s activities and its decisions.  The national reports (which contain recommendations specific to each country and thus can be used to monitor very closely the progress made and the ground lost in the states) are not disseminated.  Here, a certain amount of confusion was reported regarding the instructions as to whether the national reports might possibly be circulated in connection with the Hemispheric Report.

The information that the MESECVI compiles, the analyses that its organs prepare, and the documents that the Mechanism and the CIM Secretariat produce are not locally disseminated by the States.  Although it is currently being redesigned in preparation for re-launch, in recent years the MESECVI’s web page did not feature all the information and was not translated into all the languages of the region.

This lack of knowledge and the failure to circulate the information and recommendations produced by the MESECVI make it difficult for the CEVI experts, civil society organizations (human rights organizations) and the states themselves to follow up on the MESECVI’s recommendations.  At the same time, the fact that so few people know of the MESECVI’s existence and its work within the region makes it difficult for the MESECVI to become an authority on the subject of violence against women for the individuals and organizations who work on this subject in its diverse manifestations.

Among the global and regional international organizations consulted, there was institutional readiness to work jointly with the MESECVI.
/  It was suggested, however, that more effort might be put into coordinating the MESECVI’s activities with those of other international agencies. It was suggested, for example, that the indicators of violence used within CEVI could perhaps be coordinated with those used by ECLAC. If the ECLAC initiatives and those of the regional system that monitors violence against women were using standardized indicators, each system’s findings and advances would reinforce the other’s.

As for the MESECVI’s partnership with other organs of the regional human rights system, a number of those consulted highlighted the importance of strengthening the association with the Inter-American Commission on Human Rights (IACHR), and especially with its Rapporteurship on the Rights of Women.  The first order of business, however, would be the MESECVI’s institutional strengthening, so that the relationships established are based on reciprocal contributions. 

ELA verified for itself that the MESECVI does not figure prominently among the sources of information available in the states parties.  It did this by checking the official websites of the national mechanisms for the advancement of women.
/
The purpose of ELA’s review of websites was to ascertain the extent to which the states are making the reports presented to the MESECVI, the country reports, their specific recommendations, and the Hemispheric Report accessible to those who are active in the area of violence against women.  These documents are the minimum required to enable civil society organizations, human rights organizations and other interested parties to monitor implementation of the MESECVI’s recommendations.  The website review was careful to look at the extent to which the states actually disseminate comparable information issued by other human rights organizations (for example, the organs that monitor compliance with the international human rights treaties, like the CEDAW Committee) because this is indicative of the states’ commitment to establishing policies that are responsive to the recommendations that international bodies and forums make to them and of their willingness to allow national actors (civil society organizations and human rights organizations) to monitor the states’ actions by allowing full access to public information.  

The review of websites of national mechanisms found that of the 32 states that signed the Convention of Belém do Pará, only 14 have standalone websites for the mechanism for the advancement of women.   Of these, only three countries publish information on the MESECVI (Argentina, Brazil and Mexico).  In these three cases, the websites feature the State’s report to the MESECVI, in other words, the State’s account of its compliance with the obligations under the Convention.  Mexico, however, is the country whose website also features the report of MESECVI to the country and the Hemispheric Report.  Without providing any additional information, the website of the mechanism for the advancement of women hosted by one country (Guatemala) features a link to the CIM web page, where the information on all the countries is available.

In order to see how MESECVI compares to other organizations that monitor compliance with international human rights treaties in terms of the importance attached to them, the websites were checked for the reports that the states prepare for the CEDAW Committee and for the recommendations that the CEDAW Committee makes to the states.  In the case of the 14 countries that have websites for the mechanisms for the advancement of women, only 6 published the State’s report to the CEDAW Committee.  This is true of Argentina, Brazil and Mexico (which also published their reports to the MESECVI) and Ecuador, Peru and Uruguay, which published their reports to the CEDAW Committee but not to the MESECVI.  

Three countries (Argentina, Brazil and Mexico) also published the CEDAW Committee’s specific recommendations to the state.  Uruguay only publishes the CEDAW Committee’s general recommendations.

The conclusion drawn from this simple exercise is that the great majority of the states in the region do not appear to be firmly committed to disseminating information related to the reports they present to the bodies that monitor compliance with obligations undertaken in regional and global conventions and agreements.  The official websites of the mechanisms for the advancement of women appear to be underutilized as a means of democratizing access to the kind of public information that would enable diverse actors to deploy strategies for monitoring the commitments the state has undertaken vis-à-vis human rights.

3.3.
Civil Society’s Participation

Most of those who answered the questionnaire regarded society’s participation as a plus.  Having established that civil society organizations have had a relatively small degree of participation with the MESECVI’s activities and that the Mechanism’s activities and documents are not being widely circulated, the general consensus is that measures must be taken to encourage the kinds of changes that will turn this situation around. 

According to the Hemispheric Report, the Technical Secretariat of the MESECVI received shadow reports on Argentina (CLADEM), El Salvador (CLADEM), Honduras (CLADEM), Peru (Flora Tristán), and Uruguay (CLADEM). CLADEM was the only organization to present reports.
/
Some of those who answered the questionnaire pointed to the Third Meeting of Experts of the CEVI, held in Buenos Aires (July 18-20, 2007) as a milestone in bringing the MESECVI into closer contact with human rights organizations and civil society organizations.
/
Nevertheless, it is through shadow reports that civil society organizations have the opportunity to introduce data and substantive information to supplement or indeed challenge the national reports.  It is from shadow reports that a mechanism like the MESECVI stands to gain the most. 

To contrast civil society’s low participation, as described in the MESECVI’s Hemispheric Report, with its participation in the form of shadow reports filed with committees that monitor observance of international treaties (like the CEDAW Committee) or regional forums like the hearings held by the IACHR, ELA did a survey of the extent of civil society organizations’ participation in those areas in the last two years.

According to the survey,
/ in the 2008-2009 period, 32 organizations filed shadow reports with the CEDAW Committee in the sessions where some of the states party to the Convention of Belém do Pará were evaluated.
/  On the other hand, 45 civil society organizations participated in the hearings that the IACHR held on the subject of women’s rights.
/
During this period, shadow reports were presented to the CEDAW Committee at the sessions that examined Argentina, El Salvador, Uruguay and Peru (in other words, the same countries for which CLADEM had presented a shadow report to the MESECVI).  However, the CEDAW Committee also had the benefit of shadow reports from civil society organizations on the following countries:  Bolivia, Brazil, Chile, Colombia, Costa Rica, Ecuador, Guatemala, Haiti, Mexico, Nicaragua, Panama, Paraguay and Venezuela.   The MESECVI never received a shadow report from a civil society organization for its evaluation of any of these countries.

The main conclusion that can been drawn from this comparison is that there are civil society organizations that are willing and have the technical, professional and economic means to participate in the regional and global bodies that evaluate their respective countries.  However, these organizations’ contributions are not making their way to the MESECVI, which means that it is missing out on the opportunity to compare the information supplied by the State with information supplied by independent sources, which would enhance the CEVI’s evaluation.

It might be good to ask what factors are preventing or making it difficult for civil society organizations to participate more in the MESECVI’s activities.

The ELA survey revealed that some members of civil society know little if anything about the MESECVI’s existence, its functions and modus operandi.  Even in those cases where there is an awareness of the MESECVI, respondents underscored the fact that civil society plays absolutely no role in the processes that the MESECVI involves, including the methods for selecting and designating the CEVI experts.  Thus, the MESECVI is thought of as being unreceptive to contributions from civil society. 

Some of those who answered the questionnaire suggested strategies to improve civil society’s participation.  They suggested the possibility of holding meetings in the states that are party to the Convention of  Belém do Pará (and recalled the Buenos Aires meeting in 2007, for example), as this creates closer contact with the civil society organizations in the country hosting the meeting.
/  Another possibility that the respondents mentioned was to use the virtual media to enable representatives of NGOs to participate without incurring the high costs of travel, lodging and other related expenses.
/
When contemplating the various strategies that might be used to better publicize the MESECVI and its activities and encourage civil society’s participation, the basic question that has to be asked is this: what does the MESECVI expect from civil society’s participation? This question matters, because some of the problems that the Mechanism is facing could begin to be corrected if the door to civil society’s participation was opened wider.  For example, civil society could be helpful in publicizing the MESECVI’s existence, its work and its recommendations.  At the same time, the work of the MESECVI might be enhanced by contributions from independent actors that supply information to supplement the research of the CEVI experts and that could provide a thought-provoking contrast to the reports presented by the states. 

Many of the problems that the respondents mentioned are not ones that can be corrected by increasing civil society’s participation.  Unless the states party make a greater commitment in the form of infrastructure changes, economic resources and human resources that better equip the CIM Secretariat to process the information received and maintain fluid and speedy channels of communication with all persons involved, any effort to introduce new actors will simply compound some of the problems that the MESECVI is already up against today. 

3.4.
Recommendations and conclusions drawn from the field work

The initiative of the CIM Secretariat to analyze and evaluate the Mechanism and its activities following completion of the First Multilateral Evaluation Round of the MESECVI on the whole received an enthusiastic response from the respondents.  Those who answered the questionnaire said they wanted to collaborate in helping to make the Mechanism more relevant and lend greater visibility to the activities undertaken in the region to prevent, punish and eradicate violence against women. 

The responses to the questionnaire, a reading of the documents and a review of contextual information produced recommendations in three specific areas:  recommendations on the MESECVI’s legal structure; recommendations on the operation of the Mechanism; and recommendations related to the impact of the activities and reports produced by the MESECVI.  As observed in earlier sections of this report, a recurring theme that runs through all three of these areas is the importance attached to civil society’s participation in the processes established in the Convention of Belém do Pará. 
· Recommendations and conclusions related to the MESECVI’s legal structure

With regard to the legal structure by which the Mechanism operates (rules of procedure), a significant number of the respondents were of the view that certain amendments could be introduced, which is not to say that all the problems that the MESECVI is experiencing will be solved simply by introducing changes in its rules.
/
On the matter of the appointment of CEVI experts, respondents stated that the regulations should clearly spell out the minimum qualifications, the required independence, disqualifying factors and the length of an expert’s term. Similarly, as the main obstacle to the CEVI experts’ participation is the funds for the travel to participate in working meetings, clauses to that effect should be included in the applicable rules.

With regard to the designation of competent national authorities, some respondents emphasized how important it was that the appointment should go to the highest-ranking authority of the mechanism for the advancement of women or an analogous institution in each country.  This will mean that the authority answerable to the Mechanism and the institution that designs, implements and monitors public policy and that introduces any changes that the recommendations may advise will be one and the same. 

Some of the respondents expressed the view that the rules should make provision for ways of verifying compliance with the established requirements.  Other respondents took the opposite position, and specifically underscored the need to respect the autonomy of the states; in their view, the Mechanism had an obligation to accept the appointments made by the states.

Finally, still another concern–one previously mentioned in this report–could also become one of the regulatory reforms: namely, the duration or length of the Multilateral Evaluation Rounds.  Given the amount of time that passes between the time the questions are asked, the countries’ replies are received and the recommendations resulting from the experts’ evaluations are issued, the main concern is to ensure that the recommendations have not already been superseded by the time they are issued.  Substantive discussion is needed of strategies for correcting the causes of this problem.  Clearly, merely establishing a deadline by which all parties must complete their work will not be enough to bring about the necessary changes.

· Recommendations and conclusions related to the operation of the MESECVI

Many of those who answered the questionnaire said it was vital that the economic resources necessary to enable the MESECVI to function be supplied.  Unless states underwrite their travel expenses, it will be difficult for experts to attend the meetings and participate. 

In some cases, the replies received from the ANC underscored the need to have longer advance notice regarding the dates of meetings so that they can make the necessary administrative arrangements to get travel by members of the CEVI authorized and funded. 

In line with the need to appropriate the necessary economic resources, many of the replies said that one of the conditions sine qua non was to strengthen the political commitments essential for the MESECVI to function. 

· Recommendations and conclusions related to the MESECVI’s impact 

Most of the persons who answered the questionnaire said that the MESECVI has not yet had a significant impact, but that it may be too soon to tell.  Establishing more points of contact with civil society may prove to be a useful strategy to move forward on that front, as a virtuous circle can be created in which the civil society organizations provide independent information (basically to the CEVI during the consultation and evaluation processes) and then disseminate the MESECVI’s recommendations on the domestic front while monitoring the recommendations that the Mechanism makes.

4.
Conclusions and proposals

The Mechanism of the Convention of Belém do Pará has been in operation for five years and in that time has completed the First Multilateral Evaluation Round and has launched the Second Round.  There are critical issues throughout these processes that have to be scrutinized at greater length in order to begin to correct some of the problems experienced thus far.

The paragraphs that follow present ELA’s final conclusions and proposals in three key areas: first, the structure of the MESECVI, its costs and methods of operation; second, the Mechanism’s impact and strategies for publicizing it; third, civil society’s participation and the Mechanism’s link to civil society.  The section ends with some final thoughts.

4.1.
The structure of the MESECVI, its costs and methods of operation

The institutional configuration of the MESECVI–both unique and democratic–also makes for a complex and taxing structure when in full operation.  The fact that the ANC and the members of the CEVI have to travel to each and every activity in their portfolio, represents a sizeable investment in terms of the economic resources that the states must periodically make available for working and analysis meetings, which in the end determines the quality, representativeness and relevance of the reports for which the MESECVI is responsible.

The structure also presupposes that each state party will designate someone to serve as ANC and as a member of the CEVI, and that each of these will have the competence and dedication necessary to perform these functions.  While many countries have demonstrated commitment and dedication, the experience in recent years suggests that the degree of compliance and commitment has been uneven.
/  One gauge of that commitment has been the low response rate to the calls from ELA and the CIM Secretariat to participate in this evaluation process.

At the same time, the procedures (convocations, distribution of information, organization) and the processing of the wealth of data compiled during the Mechanism’s activities, requires an enormous effort at coordination, analysis and review by the CIM Secretariat, which has very little in the way of personnel to fulfill all the obligations that the Mechanism imposes, and which are not its only functions.

While the financial resources that the OAS allocates to the Mechanism have to be increased,
/ it is also true that the problems mentioned in the various responses cannot all be blamed on a lack of funds. There must also be assurances of the states parties’ political willingness to participate in the Mechanism and its procedures; to receive, disseminate and implement its recommendations; and to make all relevant information available to civil society, academic circles and actors involved in the implementation, follow-up, monitoring and evaluation of public policy. 

· Proposals based on the MESECVI’s current structure
If the current structure of the MESCVI remains as is, there are certain changes that could be tested in response to some of the concerns expressed during the course of this research.  One change that was suggested by a number of respondents has to do with abbreviating the duration of the Rounds.

The idea is to complete the Evaluation Round in a shorter space of time to ensure the temporal relevance of the recommendations made to the states parties. However, legislating a shorter turn-around time for the evaluation process is not sufficient, since one of the problems is that the countries do not answer requests within the specified time periods; also, for some members of the CEVI, just getting to the working meetings is difficult. 

Having already completed a basic diagnostic study–the Hemispheric Report–looking to the future the MESECVI might try other alternatives.  For example, following the model of other committees that monitor compliance with international human rights conventions, the Evaluation Rounds could be divided up according to a variety of criteria. This would mean that not every country would be evaluated on each of the many issues raised in the basic questionnaire circulated among the ANC. 

One option would be to have a different group of countries evaluated in each round, which is the system used in the CEDAW Committee.  A specific number of countries would be selected for each Round, so that the Mechanism and the CIM Secretariat would concentrate on following, evaluating and making recommendations on those countries.

One disadvantage of this approach, however, is that it will not produce a region-wide picture of the problems that persist in the area of prevention, eradication and punishment of violence against women.  Despite the disparities among the countries of the region where these problems are concerned, that regional picture affords the countries an opportunity to cooperate with each other in different ways, drawing upon their diverse experiences. 

To address this concern, and following the model used in the Hemispheric Report, a decision might be made that henceforth the Evaluation Rounds will examine the progress that the countries are making in different thematic areas: access to justice, legislation, statistics, assistance services, or cooperation among government institutions and agencies (and other possible subject areas).

If the focus is on just one of these issues, the ANCs’ responses to the questionnaires would be more precise and specific, the information gaps would be obvious, and the job of compiling, analyzing and evaluating these reports would pose fewer problems for the CEVI and the CIM Secretariat.  The limited financial and human resources would thus be deployed on a method that might prove to be more efficient.

· Proposals that would necessitate a change in the MESECVI’s current structure
If a decision is made to conduct a more in-depth evaluation of the MESECVI by means of a joint exercise in reflection among the various actors involved, some thought might be given to the possibility of changing the Mechanism’s current structure.

For example, one possibility would be to create a Mechanism with fewer experts on the CEVI, with pre-established terms; a rotating membership system would be established based on the principle of equal regional representation.  A process could be devised to elect experts on a regional basis, with fixed terms; representation of any region would rotate among experts of differing nationalities.

This approach would reduce the operating costs of the CEVI, which is one of the cornerstones that enable the Mechanism to function.  However, this approach would also increase the workload if the number of countries being evaluated at any given time remains as it is under the current system.
/
At the present time, the current configuration of the MESECVI strikes a certain political balance that would have to be revisited in any discussion of possible changes to the current structure.  Any change of this kind would undoubtedly require a lengthy process of debate, preceded by more in-depth inquiries into some of the issues raised in this report. 

4.2.
MESECVI’s impact and dissemination strategies

Now that the First Multilateral Evaluation Round has been completed, the MESECVI has compiled a considerable amount of specific information from the states parties.  This information, however, has not penetrated the countries so that it can be accessed by the various actors that may be pivotal in following and monitoring the Mechanism’s recommendations.  Furthermore, the states party have not helped to publicize the MESECVI and to disseminate its documents through its own channels of information.

Any number of strategies could be deployed to improve the impact that the MESECVI has had thus far.  On the one hand, better channels of communication with the ANC and the members of the CEVI could be tested; at the present time the exchanges with the CIM Secretariat and among counterparts appear to be somewhat irregular and uneven.   One strategy would be to earmark funds to ensure that the website is kept up to date and to eventually set up discussion forums for the experts, who say that they have difficulty completing their discussion of substantive issues in the time allotted for their meetings. 

Another point frequently mentioned is the importance of better interaction with the NGOs.  The strategies for welcoming the participation of civil society organizations can become an end unto itself.  Civil society organizations can help to monitor implementation of the MESECVI’s recommendations and enhance the impact of the Mechanism itself. 

The following strategies may serve to publicize MESECVI’s existence and the work it does, and also help it to cultivate associations with other actors in the region:

· Positioning and promotion of the MESECVI among relevant actors within the region 

MESECVI and its work could be disseminated by various means as a way to create partnerships with other relevant actors.  The following are some of the methods that could be used:

· Create a newsletter, distributed by the CIM Secretariat; sections of the newsletter could be written by members of the Mechanism, on a rotating basis.

· Arrange to have a specific section included in one of the newsletters circulated by other OAS institutions, like the IACHR or the civil society division, etc. 

· Prepare and distribute the MESECVI statements on current issues or events, whether they occur within the OAS (such as the judgment of the Inter-American Court of Human Rights in the “Cotton Field” case) or elsewhere in the region.

· Promote substantive discussions on certain issues that are relevant to the MESECVI‘s activities, such as the use of statistics to craft public policies on the various manifestations of violence against women.  The Mechanism could propose a report on the topic and discuss it, and thereby launch a process for receiving information and contributions from civil society or academic institutions.  This exchange could produce the Mechanism’s position on a topic, which would function as a kind of consensus within the region. 

If the MESECVI wants to take on a leadership role among the region’s institutions on the issue of violence against women, then it has to establish and pursue a clear policy of communicating its objectives, activities, strategies and products. 

· New activities, new alliances

It has been observed that the MESECVI might do well to conduct other activities as a way of promoting its work and establishing new alliances with relevant actors in the region.  One suggestion was that persons from civil society be invited to participate in the MESECVI meetings at OAS headquarters.  This could cause problems when deciding who to invite and the funds that will be needed to pay for travel. 

Then, too, the Mechanism might also explore greater use of technological tools to promote virtual meetings, discussions and online forums, and organize joint events with institutions that have more organizational infrastructure.

· Website circulation of documents produced by the MESECVI.

The MESECVI site should feature easily identifiable and country-specific information translated into all the languages of the region or at least the official language of the country concerned.  The website should also feature any shadow or alternative reports that may have been presented in connection with a given country.  This point will be addressed later in this document.

One of the most basic recommendations to the states is that they make it mandatory  practice that their official websites (either the website of the mechanism for the advancement of women, the website of the secretariats or ministries of human rights, and the foreign ministry’s website) visibly feature all the information related to the MESECVI and its procedures, including the state’s report, the MESECVI’s evaluations, its recommendations  to the state and, on a more general level, its recommendations to the region.

4.3.
Participation of and connection to civil society

As was observed in previous paragraphs, nongovernmental organizations can be helpful in disseminating, following and monitoring implementation of the MESECVI’s recommendations. 

Another question that might be interesting to explore is this: what kinds of conditions would induce civil society organizations to participate in regional and global mechanisms for the protection of human rights.  The idea here is to see whether the MESECVI might influence or bolster their potential participation. 

In general terms, civil society’s participation in regional and global forums requires five elements: 

First, it requires a certain degree of institutional capacity, i.e., an organization with sufficient financial and economic resources and foresight and planning to carry on the work that participation of this kind implies.  Second, technical know-how is needed, i.e., professionals and persons trained to interact with human rights organizations.  Third –and related to the preceding element- the organization has to know and understand the procedure that it is required to follow when it participates:  what presentations it can introduce, what the content must be, and the deadlines and formalities that must be observed.  Then, too, the organization has to have sufficient information at hand to put together its contributions.  Finally, it is important that the NGO earn greater credibility (with the states, international organizations, and donors) by its participation in an international forum, which will redound to the benefit of the entire system.

The following table is a summation of the conditions necessary for civil society’s participation and the contributions that the MESECVI can make to cultivate those conditions, which will ultimately be advantageous to the Mechanism itself.

Table 4.
Conditions sine qua non for civil society organizations to participate in the regional and global human rights systems

	Essential elements


	Implications
	The MESECVI’s situation

	Institutional capacity
	NGOs must have access to financing that enables them to establish themselves and have a permanent structure in place that has the capacity to conduct research and follow up the recommendations, impactful measures, etc.

	This does not depend on the MESECVI

	Technical know-how
	Promote study programs on the international organizations and procedures, master’s degree programs, areas of specialization and so on.
	This does not depend on the MESECVI, although it can make a contribution by, for example, holding meetings in the member states, as this serves to increase awareness of the Mechanism and heighten its profile.


	Knowledge of the procedure: deadlines, where the presentation is made, the required content and the purpose of the information 
	· A webpage with clear, up-to-date information (in the languages of the OAS member states)

· Contact the organizations to invite them to participate in the proceedings

· Consult with the NGOs
· 
	The MESECVI can be of assistance.

	Availability of information: the MESECVI’s questionnaire/ the States’ responses/CEVI’s preliminary recommendations 
	· A web page with clear, up-to-date information (in the languages of the OAS member states)

· Request the governments to have their official websites feature a basic body of information about the MESECVI and its consultation and evaluation procedures.

	The MESECVI can be of assistance

	Heighten the profile of the work of the NGOs and enable them to gain credibility with states, international organizations and donors.

	CIM can report the NGOs that participated in the MESECVI by various means:  the CIM’s website, news reports, periodic bulletins.
	The MESECVI can be of assistance.


Source:
prepared by ELA.

One of the basic conditions for enabling other actors to participate is the accessibility of the information and the transparency of the procedures.  The dates, formats, deadlines, and stages in the various processes are all basic information that civil society needs to know in order to be able to plan for and organize its own involvement.  

Some type of procedure must be legislated to enable civil society organizations to submit shadow reports on the states party, so that the opportunity to participate in the consultation processes does not rely entirely on the contacts that the CEVI experts have with certain organizations.

4.4.
Final thoughts

The wealth of experience and the amount of knowledge and information that the MESECVI has amassed, as a specific mechanism to monitor the violence against women in the region, has been underutilized thus far. 

However, it is clear that in order to correct the present situation and substantially improve the MESECVI’s efficacy and impact, a greater political commitment is needed, first and foremost, from the states parties.  By signing the Convention of Belém do Pará and approving the Mechanism, the states undertook an obligation to take all measures necessary to ensure that they are enforced, that they are observed and that they are fully functional.

The states have to honor their commitment through a series of measures that cannot be deferred or delegated:  designating the ANC and the CEVI experts in a timely manner and in accordance with the established formalities and procedures; widely publicizing the MESECVI, its documents and national recommendations; ensuring the transparency of the procedures in order to enable civil society organizations to participate in all possible forums. 

The mechanisms and procedures for all the processes associated with the MESECVI must be clear, understood and publicized by a variety of means.  This is the only way to ensure broad-based civil society participation, with democratic and transparent announcements.

Greater commitment on the part of the states is essential; this must materialize in the form of changes to the infrastructure and financial and human resources of the CIM Secretariat.  The Secretariat needs to have the means to process the information it receives and to keep fluid and swift channels of communication open with all those involved.  Otherwise, the entrée to new actors will only compound some of the problems that the MESECVI now faces. 

Finally, the low response rate to this questionnaire calls into question the commitment of various parties involved in the MESECVI.  At the very least, another method should be considered when undertaking more ambitious inquiries in the future. 

None of the changes that that the MESECVI needs will be possible unless the circumstances under which it currently operates change.  It is unrealistic to keep resources at their present levels, the same procedures intact and the same actors, and expect a different outcome.

The joint exercise in reflection must continue to examine how best to enhance the MESECVI’s operation and impact and its association with nongovernmental organizations in ways that will strengthen its position in the region.

Annex 1

Guide Questionnaire

1.
What impact do you think the First Multilateral Evaluation Round had on the States Parties’ implementation of the Convention of Belém do Pará?  Specifically, what impact or repercussions did the general and specific recommendations made to the States have?  What measures were taken as a consequence of those recommendations?
2.
Among international organizations, did the MESECVI gain recognition as a best practice to be followed and supported? (PAHO, ECLAC, UNIFEM, IDB)
3.
What have been the major challenges for the MESECVI’s operation and efficacy? Please include the conceptual challenges and the operating/logistical challenges)
4.
What strengths can the MESECVI tap into for its future work and what resources will it need?
5.
What would be the best way to improve the MESECVI’s operation and efficiency? 
6.
Please identify the MESECVI’s major contributions in the last five years.

(a) In terms of shedding light on the issue of violence against women in the country/region

(b) In terms of legislative reforms

(c) In terms of access to justice

(d) In terms of services to prevent violence against women and treat its victims

7.
Do the legal instruments governing the Mechanism fit its activities and suit its needs? 
8.
How do you view the participation and performance of the various actors? (Competent National Authority, Experts, Conference of States Parties, Secretariat) 
(a) How does the process of selecting the Experts fare?  Do you believe it needs to be changed in some way?

(b) Do you believe the Experts are able to function independently?

(c) The rules governing the MESECVI do not establish minimum requirements, disqualifying factors or conflicts of interest, or the length of the Experts’ term.  Do believe any of these issues need to be regulated?

(d) Does your country have any specific rule or regulation in this regard that might apply, by extension, to the designation of Experts?

9.
How do you assess civil society’s participation vis-à-vis the MESECVI and its bodies?
(a) In what way does civil society participate/has participated in the designation of Experts?

(b) In what way does civil society participate/has participated in the process of responding to the form that the MESECVI sends to the country?

(c) How can civil society get access to the information that the MESECVI compiles regarding its respective country, particularly the general and specific recommendations that are the product of CEVI’s evaluation?

(d) What does the country do to ensure that the information is widely disseminated?

(e) Is the information published on the official websites (of the mechanism for the advancement of women, the secretariat of human rights, other competent bodies, etc.)?

(f) What changes would you suggest to improve civil society’s participation?

10.
Are you aware of any national study or research that evaluates the operation/impact of the MESECVI in your country? 
11.
Would additional activities have to be promoted to complement the MESECVI’s objectives?
12.
Do you believe that the MESECVI’s work and impact would be amplified by teaming up with the Inter-American Commission on Human Rights?
Please add any additional comments or thoughts you might have.
Annex 2

Survey of civil society’s participation in global and regional organizations 
and forums for the protection of women’s rights 

(2008-2009)

The following table summarizes the review of the NGOs that work on issues related to women’s rights in the 32 states parties to the Convention of Belém do Pará. The survey covered the 2008-2009 period and looked at the civil society organizations that, during the period in question, prepared shadow reports for the CEDAW Committee and participated in hearings that the IACHR held on issues related to women’s rights.
/
	COUNTRY
	NGOs that have attended CEDAW Committee sessions or presented shadow reports
	NGOs that have appeared before the IACHR

	Argentina
	Joint report of: (i) ELA; (ii) Andhes;  (iii) El Agora; (iv) Fundación Mujeres en Igualdad; and (v) Prade.

CLADEM

Joint report of: (i) CELS; (ii) FEIM; (iii) Católicas por el Derecho a Decidir; (iv) CLADEM; and (v) Feministas en Acción

	ELA 

	Bolivia
	International Gay and Lesbian Human Rights Commission

IPAS

HelpAge International

Congregation of the Sisters of the Good Shepherd

Joint report of the following NGOs: (i) Coordinadora de la Mujer; (ii) Católicas por el Derecho a Decidir; (iii) Oficina Jurídica de la Mujer and (iv) CLADEM

	Fundación Igualdad Legal y Social para Lesbianas, Gays, Bisexuales y Trans (IGUALDAD LGBT) Coordinadora de la Mujer

Oficina Jurídica para la Mujer de Cochabamba

	Brazil
	CLADEM
	

	Chile
	Corporación Humanas

CLADEM
	Movimiento de Integración y Liberación Homosexual (MOVILH)

Corporación Humanas

	Colombia
	Confluencia Nacional de Redes de Mujeres: composed of:  Red de Educación Popular entre Mujeres REPEM – Colombia; Red Nacional de Mujeres; Fundación de Apoyo Comunitario – FUNDAC; Liga Internacional de Mujeres por la Paz y la Libertad, LIMPAL - Colombia, Corporación Humanas, Católicas por el Derecho a Decidir – Colombia and the Red Mujer y Participación Política. CLADEM – Colombia, and Corporación Colombia Diversa y Profamilia - Colombia (Programa Salud Sexual y Género)
	Asociación para la Promoción Social Alternativa MINGA / Corporación Colectivo de Abogados José Alvear Restrepo (CCAJAR) / Colombia Diversa 

Comisión Intereclesial de Justicia y Paz (CIJP)  Comisión Colombiana de Juristas (CCJ) 

Corporación Jurídica Libertad 

Corporación para la Defensa y Promoción de los Derechos Humanos REINICIAR

Fundación Comité de Solidaridad con los Presos Políticos (FCSPP) 

Grupo Interdisciplinario por los Derechos Humanos (GIDH)

Sisma Mujer

Casa de la Mujer de Bogotá

CEJIL

Ruta Pacífica de las Mujeres

Mesa de Trabajo Mujer y Conflicto Armado

Vamos Mujer

Mujeres que Crean


	Costa Rica
	Agenda Política de Mujeres

Asociación de las Mujeres en Salud (AMES)

	CEJIL

	Ecuador
	CLADEM

Corporación Humanas - Ecuador

Organización Ecuatoriana de Mujeres Lesbianas - OEML

Taller de Comunicación Mujer

Centro de Derechos Reproductivos

	

	El Salvador
	CLADEM

La Fundación de Estudios para la Aplicación del Derecho (FESPAD)
	CEJIL

Organización de Mujeres Salvadoreñas por la Paz (ORMUSA)

Las Dignas

Las Mélidas


	Guatemala
	Centro de Derechos Económicos y Sociales

CLADEM Guatemala

Convergencia Ciudadana de Mujeres

Movimiento de Mujeres Indígenas Tz'ununija '

Equality Now

Organización de mujeres bisexuales y lesbianas "Desde Nosotras"

FIAN Internacional

	Colectiva Actoras de Cambio

Red de No Violencia contra las Mujeres

CEJIL

	Haiti
	Equality Now
	Regroupement des Citoyens pour la Protection des Droits Humains (RECIPRODH)

Collectif de Notables de Cité Soleil (Fondation CONOCS)


	Honduras
	
	Feministas en Resistencia de Honduras  

Observatorio de la Transgresión Feminista

Colectiva de Mujeres Hondureñas (CODEMUH)

CEJIL

	Mexico
	CLADEM
	Red Nacional de organismos Civiles de Derechos Humanos “Todos los Derechos para Todos “A.C., (REDTDT) 

Asistencia legal por los Derechos Humanos A.C., (ASILEGAL)

Católicas por el Derecho a Decidir (CDC) 

Centro de Derechos Humanos de las Mujeres (CEDEHM) 

Centro de Derechos Humanos Victoria Diez (CDHVD) 

Grupo de Mujeres de San Cristóbal de Las Casas (COLEM) 

Instituto Guerrerense de Derechos Humanos 

CEJIL

Centro de Derechos de la Mujer de Chiapas


	Nicaragua 
	Movimiento Autónomo de Mujeres de Nicaragua
	Movimiento Autónomo de Mujeres de Nicaragua 

	Panama 
	CLADEM 

Asociación Panameña de Personas Transgénero 

La Voz de las Mujeres Indígenas Panameñas 

International Disability Alliance
	

	Paraguay
	Coordinación de Mujeres del Paraguay (CMP)

CLADEM

	

	Peru
	CLADEM

DEMUS

Flora Tristán

Movimiento Manuela Ramos
	Foro Salud Perú

Centro de Promoción y Defensa de los Derechos Sexuales y Reproductivos (PROMSEX)

Estudio para la Defensa de los Derechos de la Mujer en Perú (DEMUS)


	Uruguay
	CLADEM
	

	Venezuela
	Foro por la equidad de Género
	

	TOTAL
	32
	45


Sources: http://www2.ohchr.org/english/bodies/cedaw/sessions.htm;
http://www.cladem.org/espanol/;- www.humanas.cl; www.cidh.org. 
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Official websites checked for the presence of the MESECVI, its documents and its recommendations

	Country
	Institution
	Comment



	Antigua and Barbuda
	Directorate of Gender Affairs


	It does not have a website.

	Argentina
	Consejo Nacional de la Mujer

www.cnm.gov.ar
	The website is easy to access and is visible.  It is home to downloadable, compressed zip files.

	Bahamas
	Bureau Of Women’s Affairs


	The website is down. 

	Barbados
	Bureau of Gender Affairs


	It does not have a website. 

	Belize
	Women’s Department

(Ministry of Human Development, Women and Youth)

http://www.humandevelopment.gov.bz/?page_id=31

	The page contains no information whatever.  It simply states the department’s purposes and the contact. 

	Bolivia
	Viceministerio de la Mujer


	It does not have an internet page.

	Brazil
	Secretaría  Especial de Políticas para as Mulheres

www.presidencia.gov.br/estrutura_presidencia/sepm/

	The files are easy to access and everything is divided by organization:  the UN, the OAS or MERCORSUR.



	Chile
	Servicio Nacional de la Mujer

www.sernam.cl/portal/

	The webpage does not devote any space to laws or international treaties or conventions.

	Colombia
	Consejería Presidencial para la Equidad de la Mujer

http://equidad.presidencia.gov.co/

	The section where the convention is published is easy to access.

	Costa Rica
	Instituto Nacional de las Mujeres (INAMU)

www.inamu.go.cr/

	The webpage does not devote any space to laws, treaties or conventions 

	Dominica
	DOMINICA WOMEN’S BUREAU

MINISTRY OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT, GENDER AFFAIRS AND INFORMATION


	It does not have a webpage.

	Dominican Republic
	Secretaría de Estado de la Mujer

www.mujer.gob.do
	Neither the report nor the recommendations appear on the website.

	Ecuador
	MINISTERIO DE RELACIONES EXTERIORES

www.mmrree.gov.ec/

	The link to the report is very difficult to find and is embedded in the text at the website.

	El Salvador
	Instituto de Desarrollo de la Mujer

http://www.isdemu.gob.sv/

	Very easy to access; the link is on the first page that comes up when entering the Institute’s website.

	Grenada
	Presidential Secretariat for Women’s Affairs


	The Secretariat does not have a page on the internet. 

	Guatemala
	Secretaría  Presidencial de la Mujer

www.seprem.gob.gt/

	The website does not have a section devoted to laws, treaties or conventions

	Guyana 
	Women’s Affairs Bureau

http://www.mlhsss.gov.gy/womens-affairs-bureau

	Neither the report nor the recommendations are published.

	Haiti
	Ministre à la Condition Féminine et aux Droits de la Femme

http://www.mcfdf.gouv.ht/

	Neither the report nor the recommendations are published. 

	Honduras
	Instituto Nacional de la Mujer

www.inam.gob.hn/

	The website does not have a section devoted to laws, treaties or conventions

	Jamaica
	Bureau of Women’s Affairs

http://www.jis.gov.jm/Bureau%20of%20Womens%20Affairs/index.asp

	The Bureau does not have a standalone website; the contact information and information about how the sector functions appear at the government’s official website. 



	Mexico
	INSTITUTO NACIONAL DE LAS MUJERES – INMUJERES

www.inmujeres.gob.mx/

	The State’s report to the MESECVI is published, as are the recommendations to the State and the Hemispheric Report.

	Nicaragua 
	INSTITUTO NICARAGÜENSE DE LA MUJER (INIM)

www.inim.gob.ni

	The website does not publish the convention, the report or the recommendations.

	Panama 
	Instituto Nacional de la Mujer


	It has no website (the Institute was just recently created)


	Paraguay
	SECRETARÍA DE LA MUJER DE LA PRESIDENCIA DE LA REPÚBLICA

www.mujer.gov.py/

	The webpage is under construction. 

	Peru
	Dirección General de la Mujer

www.mimdes.gob.pe

	The Convention is not listed.

	Saint Kitts and Nevis
	Ministry of Community, Social Development and Gender Affairs


	It has no website.

	Saint Lucia
	Department of Gender Relations

(Ministry of Health, Human Services, Family Affairs and Gender Relations)


	It has no website. 

	St. Vincent and the Grenadines
	Women's Affairs Department


	It has no website.

	Suriname
	National Bureau for Gender Policy


	It has no website.

	Trinidad and Tobago
	Ministry of Community Development, Culture and Gender Affairs

www.cdcga.gov.tt

	The webpage is under construction. 

	Uruguay
	Instituto Nacional de la Familia y la Mujer

www.inmujeres.gub.uy/mides/index.jsp

	The webpage does not feature either the report or the recommendations. 

	Venezuela
	INSTITUTO NACIONAL DE LA MUJER

www.inamujer.gob.ve/

	The webpage does not feature either the report or the recommendations. 


Source:  prepared by ELA based on its review of the listed websites.
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�.	A (� HYPERLINK "http://www.ela.org.ar" ��www.ela.org.ar�) is a nonprofit organization constituted in the Argentine Republic that produces information and diagnostic studies on various issues related to the effective enforcement and observance of women’s rights, including the right to a violence-free life.  The study commissioned by the CIM was coordinated by Haydee Birgin and Natalia Gherardi, ELA‘s President and Executive Director, respectively, and the authors of this report.  We are grateful for the contributions that Josefina Durán made toward some of the personal and telephone interviews conducted and the review and analysis of the material compiled for the research.  We would also like to acknowledge Nadia Ferrari for her search of internet sites.


�.	The MESECVI was created by the First Conference of States Party to the Convention of Belém do Pará, held on October 26, 2004, which approved the Statute of the Mechanism to Follow Up on the Implementation of the Inter-American Convention on the Prevention, Punishment, and Eradication of Violence Against Women (MESECVI).


�.	See “Position Paper No. 2. Evaluation of the Statute of the Mechanism to Follow Up on the Implementation of the Convention of Belém do Pará,” CEJIL, San José, Costa Rica.  Center for Justice and International Law 2005.  This study focuses on an evaluation of the documents associated with the creation of the MESECVI and points up what CEJIL describes as design flaws in terms of the independence of the experts, the lack of procedures to monitor for the presentation of biased information by one or more states, the high costs of the Mechanism and the inconsistencies between the Mechanism as approved and the text of the Convention with respect to the creation of the Mechanism itself.  It also points out the estimated costs of implementing the MESECVI.  In ELA’s research, the set of questions put to those interviewed included whether they were aware of other studies on the MESECVI; every person interviewed answered in the negative.  This suggests that the existence of the MESECVI has not been widely publicized and that its influence in academic circles and in evaluation of public policy appears to be relatively inconsequential thus far. 





�.	Annex 1 contains the guide questionnaire, the original of which was in Spanish.  An English translation was sent to the English-speaking countries.  All recipients were advised that, if convenient for the person being interviewed, a meeting or telephone interview could be arranged.  The majority of those who answered the questionnaire opted to send their comments by e-mail.


�.	As the reader will learn, the response rate was low and in many cases no e-mail response was received.  E-mails are the principal mode of communication between the CIM Secretariat and the organs and members of the MESECVI, so that the lack of response is also indicative of how effective these e-mails are. 


�.	This list was included pursuant to the terms of reference on which ELA and the CIM agreed.


�.	Other informal contacts were established with human rights activists and members of civil society and the women’s movement, mainly in Argentina. 


�.	Argentina’s response was delivered at the Meeting of the Executive Committee, held in Washington on February 25, 2010.


�.	See also the comment that appears later in this report to the effect that holding meetings in other states parties, as happened in the case of Buenos Aires in 2007, might be helpful in publicizing the MESECVI..


�.	A number of respondents made this observation.  However, others said that the states parties had to have a free hand in designating the ANC, and that no outside third parties should be allowed to exercise any form of oversight or control of the appointments, out of respect for the sovereignty and independence of the states parties to the Convention of Belém do Pará. 


�.	As previously noted, this questionnaire fully confirmed the difficulties that the ANC and members of the CEVI have had with e-mail communication.  The proof was the low response rate during the course of the research.  Many of the addresses on record with the CIM Secretariat do not match the current e-mail addresses: in some cases, the contact for the e-mail address has changed, and the change was not reported to the CIM Secretariat.  Therefore, in most cases, the persons to whom ELA sent its communications did not answer its message.


�.	On the whole, most of those who answered the questionnaire (basically key informants and CEVI experts) did not claim to know of activities coordinated with other international organizations or of cases in which the MESECVI interacted with them.


�.	This review was done in January and February 2010.  Annex 3 contains a list of the internet sites visited.


�.	Some CEVI experts said that their practice was to consult the civil society organizations of the countries that they were evaluating.  There is no way to say how extensive this practice is, since these overtures are not documented and would, in any event, be up to the expert’s personal initiative. 


�.	The minutes show that the following Argentine organizations addressed the meeting:  Comisión de Equidad de Género del Consejo Consultor de Sociedad Civil; CLADEM Argentina; Fundación Mujeres en Igualdad; Fundación para Estudio e Investigación de la Mujer (FEIM); Red de Monitoreo de la Provincia de Buenos Aires; Red Metropolitana de la Violencia de la Provincia de Buenos Aires; Red Metropolitana Norte de Monitoreo; Asociación Civil de Derechos Humanos: Mujeres Unidas Migrantes y Refugiadas (AMUMRA), Rachel Halloway from Amnesty International and the GTZ.  They discussed the areas identified in the questionnaire sent to the governments and the laws on violence passed in Argentina.  They also discussed such issues as the dramatic cut to the budget of the National Council of Women, the lack of training of government personnel, the difficulty that women have in accessing justice, the need for gender-differentiated statistics, the impact of HIV/AIDS on women, and human trafficking.  


�.	The survey was done in January and February of 2010, and worked with the information contained on the websites of the United Nations Office of the High Commissioner for Human Rights, CLADEM, and Corporación Humanas. See Annex 3 for more information. 


�.	Not all the countries are reviewed in the same year; on the contrary, the review confines itself to a small number of countries.  As the system works, all states parties are to present reports every four years, with updates every two years.  The organs that monitor compliance with other treaties of the universal human rights system  require similar reporting frequency, every four or five years


�.	In surveying the shadow reports presented to the CEDAW Committee and the IACHR hearings, organizations like CLADEM and CEJIL, which are active in a number of countries of the region, were only counted once.


�.	It is interesting to note that on the occasion of ELA’s February 2010 presentation in Washington, this suggestion was well received by the representatives of some countries.  However, the Delegate of Mexico observed that some thought should be given to contributing the money, which would then be invested in that organization as a fund to help the MESECVI function.


�.	This form of civil society participation is used by other OAS bodies and units.


�.	This view was reinforced during the discussions at the meeting of the Executive Committee, held in Washington, D.C., February 25.


�.	See in this regard the CIM Secretariat’s reports indicating that ANC and members of the CEVI had not yet been designated, the confusion between the functions of the ANC and the members of the CEVI, and the degree of attendance at the various working meetings convened. 


�.	The budget of the MESECVI, of the CIM and of its Technical Secretariat is not the subject of this report.  However, it is disturbing to see the reports that the CIM Secretariat prepared to the effect that the Conference of States Parties had made recommendations to the OAS Secretary General suggesting that a series of measures be taken to improve the financial situation and the resources available to the Mechanism (as set forth in the Decisions, Conclusions and Agreements adopted in 2008); even so, according to the report prepared by the CIM Secretariat, these measures have thus far not been taken.


�.	There are many other options that could be considered, such as the configuration of the current mechanism to monitor the Protocol of San Salvador - the Working Group to Examine the Progress Reports of the States Parties to the Protocol of San Salvador- which at first glance appears to be a nimble mechanism because it has a limited number of members: one member from the IACHR; three government experts elected by the OAS from candidates nominated by the States parties, taking into account equitable geographic distribution, and one independent expert selected by the OAS from candidates nominated by the states  (see AG/RES. 2262 (XXXVII-O/07).  This Working Group prepares its recommendations from a basic report and periodic submissions from the states.  The government experts and the independent expert serve three-year terms, and may not be re-elected.  No person who is a national of the State Party whose report is under analysis may participate in the analysis.  The Group meets for five days every six months, at OAS headquarters; between meetings, a portion of the work is done via electronic mail.  However, because the Working Group is still not fully operational, it is too soon to say how effective it is and what its impact on the region is.  


�.	In the case of the survey of shadow reports presented to the CEDAW Committee and in the case of participation of IACHR hearings, organizations like CLADEM or CEJIL, which are active in various countries of the region were only counted once. 
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